
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, March 15, 2021 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
 

How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute) 
 

C. PRESENTATION 
 

1. Recognition of Service - Outgoing Commissioners & Committee Members 
 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 
 

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
https://www.lawndalecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_16676053/File/Government/Departments/City%20Clerk's%20Office/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
https://www.lawndalecity.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=17106541


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
March 15, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

 

G. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items 2 through 4, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 
 
2. Consideration of Claim Against the City 

Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claim filed by Larry Justason and 
instruct staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimant. 

 
3. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-013, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $ 622,087.67. 

 
4. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – March 1, 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 
H. ADMINISTRATION 

 
5. Annual 2020 General Plan Progress Report  

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) review the 2020 draft Annual Report; (b) 
make any revisions; and (c) direct staff to forward the report to the State Department of 
Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research. 
 

6. Change Order No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Annual Street Improvement Project     
No. 2020-5 and 2020-6 (Measure M Street Improvement Project) 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the contract change Order No. 1 for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Annual Street Improvement Project in the amount of $337,105.00; 
(b) approve contingency in amount of $16,895.00 for the Contract Change Order No. 1 
for FY 2019-20 Annual Street Improvement Project; (c) approve Contract Amendment 
No. 1 for FY 2019-20 Annual Street Improvements Project No. 2020-5 and 2020-6; and 
(d) approve the allocation of Measure M Fund in the amount of $354,000.00 to the 
account number 272-310-700.146 Street Improvements. 
 

7. City Council Subcommittee for Metro C Line (Green ) Extension Project 
Recommendation: that the City Council consider the formation of a City Council 
subcommittee for the C Line (Green) Extension Project.  

 
I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

 
J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

8. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
  



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
March 15, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

 

K. CLOSED SESSION 
 

9. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case. 

 
10. Conference with Legal Counsel – Potential Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(2), to confer with legal counsel regarding a significant exposure to litigation, 
the facts and circumstances of which are not known to the potential plaintiff. 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
April 5, 2021 in the Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 

 
It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on March 15, 2021 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1



2











3











MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

    March 1, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber,
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Bernadette Suarez, Councilmember Rhonda 
Hofmann-Gorman, Councilmember Sirley Cuevas   

Other Participants: City Clerk Erica Harbison, City Manager Kevin M. Chun, City 
Attorney Gregory M. Murphy, Los Angeles County Sheriff's 
Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services Director 
Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human Resources 
Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director Michael 
Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos, Public Works Director Julian Lee 

B. CEREMONIALS

Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney led the flag salute.

C. PRESENTATION

1. COVID-19 Victims and Survivors Memorial Day

City Clerk Erica Harbison presented the Proclamation for COVID-19 Victims and Survivors 
Memorial Day. 

Mayor Pullen-Miles led the Council in a moment of silence to remember the victims and 
survivors of COVID-19. 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Captain Duane Allen summarized the recent law enforcement activities.

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Randall Abram, Resident, inquired about the application process for the fireworks booths.

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

Councilmember Cuevas and Mayor Pullen-Miles requested that the application process be
reviewed to ensure that all non-profits submit the required documentation.  City Manager
Kevin Chun briefly explained the process stated he would be reviewing the process.

4



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
March 1, 2021 
Page 2 

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

2. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the
Agenda
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

3. Amendment to Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code Pertaining to the
Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) to Reflect Recent
Changes in State Law
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance
No. 1178-21, amending Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code pertaining to the
Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units to reflect recent changes in State
Law.

4. Amendment to Chapter 17.50 of the Lawndale Municipal Code Density Bonus
Provisions for Residential Units to Reflect Recent Changes in State Law
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance
No. 1179-21, amending Chapter 17.50 of the Lawndale Municipal Code Density Bonus
Provisions for Residential Units to Reflect Recent Changes in State Law.

5. Personnel Board Term Extension 2021-2023
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-008, extending
the terms of the current Personnel Board members to begin March 1, 2021 and end
February 28, 2023.

6. Senior Citizen Advisory Committee Term Extension 2021-2023
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-009, extending
the terms of the current Senior Citizen Advisory Committee members to begin March 1,
2021 and end February 28, 2023.

7. Beautification Committee Appointments
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointments by
directing staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 of Resolution No. CC-2103-
010, and (b) adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-010 as amended.

8. Accounts Payable Register
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-007, authorizing
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $185,258.49.

9. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – February 16, 2021
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Cuevas and carried by a vote of 5-0. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
March 1, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
H. ADMINISTRATION 

 
10. Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission Appointments  

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointments by 
directing staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 and 2 of Resolution No. CC-
2103-011, and (b) adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-011 as amended. 
 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to approve the Mayor’s appointments by directing 
staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 and 2 of Resolution No. CC-2103-011, and 
adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-011 as amended, was seconded by Councilmember 
Cuevas and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
11. Planning Commission Appointments 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointments by 
directing staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 and 2 of Resolution No. CC-
2103-012, and (b) adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-012 as amended. 
 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to approve the Mayor’s appointments by directing 
staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 and 2 of Resolution No. CC-2103-012, and 
adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-012 as amended, was seconded by Councilmember 
Suarez and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 
12. Southern California Association of Governments Annual General Assembly  

Appointment of Voting Delegate and Alternate- May 6, 2021 
Recommendation: that the City Council determine (a) who will attend the Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) annual business meeting (b) designate 
the City’s voting delegate (c) designate the City’s voting alternate (if desired) and (d) 
direct the City Clerk’s Office to formally confirm the delegate and alternate selection and 
forward that information to SCAG.  
 

City Council came to a unanimous consensus to designate Councilmember Suarez as the 
City’s voting delegate and designate Mayor Pro Tem Kearney as City’s voting alternate. 

  
13. Cancellation of City Special Events Program for March and April 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the cancellation of the following 
events that take place in March and/or April of each year; Youth in Government Day, 
Easter Egg Hunt and Youth Day Parade (b) approve the modifications to the annual 
Spring Cleanup Week program.  
 

Community Services Director Mike Estes reported on the Cancellation of City Special Events 
Program for March and April 2021. 
 
Councilmember Cuevas inquired if it will be possible to have a Community Street Clean-up in 
the month of May or June. Community Services Director Estes replied it can be encouraged. Mr. 
Estes added there will be a full Clean-up week in September. Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes replied he will introduce a summer cleanup event to the Beautification 
Committee.   
 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
March 1, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Kearney inquired where the unused special event funds will be applied. Finance 
Director Marla Pendleton replied that the funds will be added to the General Fund as savings. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles recommended there be a creative virtual event in place of the cancelled 
special events, Mayor Pro Tem Kearney concurred. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman approve the cancellation of the following 
events that take place in March and/or April of each year; Youth in Government Day, 
Easter Egg Hunt and Youth Day Parade and approve the modifications to the annual 
Spring Cleanup Week program, was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney and carried by 
a vote of 5-0. 
 
14. Quarterly Budget Update - Fiscal Year 2020-2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) receive and file report and (b) approve all 
recommended budget adjustments as listed in the staff report. 
 

Finance Director Marla Pendleton provided the Quarterly Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2020-
2021. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles inquired if staff could look at the budget in each department to potentially 
recall the employees that were laid off last year.  
 
City Manager Kevin Chun responded he will look at each departments and operation needs and 
possibly add staff back.  
 
A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney receive and file report and approve all recommended 
budget adjustments as listed in the staff report, was seconded by Councilmember Cuevas 
and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

City Manager Kevin Chun spoke of two scoping meetings Metro conducted related to the Green 
Line expansion project for public input.  
 

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
15. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
Councilmember Sirley Cuevas attended a meeting with California Contract Cities Association 
Board of Directors, an event with League of California Cities, a meeting with the Budget 
Subcommittee, and a South Bay Workforce Investment Board special orientation.   
 
Councilmember Suarez attended the Board of Directors South Bay Cities Council of 
Governments and attended the Metro Green Line scoping meeting. Councilmember Suarez 
inquired how the outreach is being conducted.  City Manager Chun replied the city staff will be 
putting together a comment letter and he will work with Community Development Director Sean 
Moore to look at other components.  
 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
March 1, 2021 
Page 5 
 
 

Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman attended the two meetings Metro Green Line scoping 
meeting and had several inquiries regarding the transparency in meetings, the communication 
with Lawndale community and the impact on Lawndale. Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman 
suggested that staff assemble a committee with councilmembers and residents to communicate 
with Metro and also request an extension on the comment period that would be ending on March 
15th. 
 
City Manager Kevin Chun replied he will attend regular meetings with Metro to discuss public 
outreach and questions about the project for a clear understanding of what it entails and will look 
into extending the comment period. Mr. Chun added this date is not the only chance comments 
may be provided. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kearney expressed concerns about the Metro project and inquired how Lawndale 
traffic will be affected. Mr. Kearney added he attended the Budget Subcommittee meeting and 
also the California Contract Cities Association Board of Directors meeting.   
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles attended the two scope meetings by Metro and spoke about his concerns 
regarding the project and outreach efforts by Metro. 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 03/15/2021 

 



5















Resolution No. CC-2103-014 
Approving General Plan Annual Progress Report 2020 1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2103-014 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA ACCEPTING 
THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 2020 
AND APPROVING THE TRANSMITTAL OF THE REPORT 

TO THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF PLANNING AND RESEARCH 
AND THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND FINDING OF EXEMPTION 
FROM CEQA REQUIREMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Lawndale (“City”) has a General Plan, which was adopted in 1999, with 
the Housing Element being subsequently revised in 1997, 2001, 2010 and 2014; and    

WHEREAS, in January 2014, the City adopted a Housing Element covering the period of 2013-
2021, which had been reviewed and approved by the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (“HCD”); and   

WHEREAS, pursuant to Cal. Government Code section 65400, the City is required to prepare a 
General Plan Annual Progress Report (APR) for submittal to the City Council, Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR), and HCD by April 1st of each year; and 

WHEREAS, the General Plan Annual Progress Report for calendar year 2020 was considered by 
the Planning Commission on February 24, 2021 and on this date, the Planning Commission approved 
Resolution 21-04 recommending that the City Council accept the General Plan Annual Progress Report 
2020; and  

WHEREAS, evidence was heard and presented from all persons interested in the General Plan 
Annual Progress Report for 2020, and the City Council has reviewed, analyzed and studied the General 
Plan Annual Progress Report for 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the recitals above are true and correct. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby accepts the General Plan Annual Progress Report for the 
2020 calendar year. The General Plan Annual Progress Report for calendar year 2020 appropriately and 
accurately summarizing the City’s progress during 2020 in implementing the action policies in its 
adopted general plan.   

Section 3. The City Council hereby directs City staff to forward the General Plan Annual 
Progress Report 2020 to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research and the California Department 
of Housing and Community Development Department in accordance with Government Code § 65400.   

Section 4. The City Council finds that the General Plan Annual Progress Report for 2020 is 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under the general 



Resolution No. CC-2103-014 
Approving General Plan Annual Progress Report 2020 2 

rule of CEQA Guidelines, Section 15061(b)(3), in that there is no possibility that the Annual Progress 
Report may have a significant negative physical impact on the environment. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of March, 2021. 

_______________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

State of California ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City Council 
of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2103-014 at a 
regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of March 2021, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman 
Bernadette Suarez 
Sirley Cuevas 

______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________
_Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 



























































6











































7



8



9



10


	21-03-15 reg.agn
	01. Outgoing Members Presentation
	02. Claim against the City
	03. Warrants
	04. 21-03-01 reg.min
	05. General Plan Annual Progress Report for 2020
	06. Annual Street Improvement Project
	07. Subcommittee for Metro
	08. Councilmembers report of attendace
	09. Closed Session Anticipated Litigation
	10. Closed Session Potential Litigation

	Button1: 


